
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
6 September 2022 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Wednesday 14 September 2022  at 7.30 pm in the Council 
Chamber, Campus East, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Governance Services Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2022 
(previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 A period of thirty minutes will be made available for questions to be put by 
Members of the public to Members of the Cabinet on matters for which the 
Council has a responsibility or which affect the Borough. 
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-

Public Document Pack



disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 
The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE CABINET  
 

 To consider a recommendation from the meeting of the Cabinet on 9 August 
2022:- 
 

(a)    Disregard of War Pensions Policy (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

 Recommendation from the meeting of the Cabinet on 9 August 2022 on 
the disregard of the War Pensions Policy. 
 

9.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 14 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY 
MEMBERS  
 

Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 

1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Gemma Moore 

“Over the last few months I have been contacted by a number of residents who 
have failed to get a response to their housing maintenance query. In most cases 
they are asking simply for an update on the progress of their repair, but instead 
either receive no response or are told to expect an update from their allocated 
surveyor which never arrives.  

Please can the Council confirm if there is a service level agreement in place for 
tenant enquires? If so what are its intended response times and is the council 
currently meeting them? 

2. Question to the Leader from Councillor Lynn Chesterman 
 

“Reading the consultation information regarding the Community Bus service I 
was alarmed to read how skewed this consultation is. This council has once 
again scheduled the process over the holiday period – 27 July to 6 September 
2022 – coinciding with a period when residents are less likely to be around or 
looking online for such a thing.  

There are two issues that stand out: 

Why was the cost of replacing the buses never factored into the annual budget 
over the number of years that the buses were expected to depreciate as is the 
normal practice?  

One question actually implies that if you are on the website and have difficulty 
ticking the box then you should have received a hard pack. A number of 
residents have complained about this. Are you happy that the questions are 
skewed in such a way that it is inevitable that they will return the response that 
you want? Were you involved in writing them or just agreed the text when 
finished?” 

3. Question to the Leader from Councillor Michal Siewniak 

In the last few weeks, I have spoken with a number of businesses in Welwyn 
Garden City Town Centre. They raised with me a number of issues and 
concerns, which relate to soaring fuel costs, high inflation and the cost of living 
crisis. As expected, many businesses are finding it difficult, almost impossible, to 
survive in the current climate 

Although several businesses also said that they are still doing ok, they fear that 
as soon as we hit the autumn and winter months, the situation will definitely 
deteriorate. How will they afford the energy price hikes when footfall could 
decrease and what alternatives can they see going forward? When major 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



 

retailers like Marks and Spencer, Next and Debenhams have left, how can the 
town centre draw in customers? 

Only at the end of August, restaurant Bill’s also shut its doors to customers.  

A completely new business and retail model is needed to re-shape the way in 
which we engage with potential investors and visitors to the town centres. If we 
want to remain a destination for residents, we must work collectively and 
creatively to “resurrect” our wonderful Town Centre, which is becoming 
worryingly tired.. The council can play a vital role in creating a vision which will 
guide this change and signal what is required, in conjunction with the existing 
businesses and BID.  The longevity of our town centres cannot simply rely on 
existing businesses, who do not have the same scope to try and guide 
regeneration. 

My question is therefore:  when will the council create a clear vision for vibrant 
town centres in WGC and Hatfield and action plans to guide their revival? Every 
delay makes their rejuvenation even harder. 

4. Question to the Leader from Councillor Max Holloway 
 

“At the last meeting of this Council, a motion brought by Labour Councillors 
regarding Personal Emergency Evacuation Plans for disabled people was voted 
down. Many members expressed their ignorance of the issue and preferred to 
wait for further guidance from the Government. Does this Council still believe the 
case is not made for these residents to have such arrangements in place?” 

5. Question to the Leader from Councillor Russ Platt 

I note with much interest that the leader of the council has called in a planning 
application in Welwyn for the erection of a 3.5 storey block containing 23 flats, 18 
underground parking spaces and associated landscaping. 

The reasons stated on the call-in are:- 

1. This is overdevelopment of the site and out of keeping with the 
conservation area and heritage properties nearby.  

2. There is a very high level of public interest against the application.  

3. Car parking is a concern, with less than one space per flat in a village 
where little alternative parking is available. 

The leader has referred to items that contravene council planning policies. 
Similarly, in the recent Biopark appeal council planning staff based reasons for 
objection on failure to adhere to council policies. This was sadly not the case in 
the original officer reports  on the Biopark and Wheat Quarter which ignored the 
council planning policies.. 

Following these recent examples, can the council now confirm that where 
applications fail to adhere to this council’s planning policies, they will expect 
officers to recommend that they are amended or rejected? 

6. Question to the Leader from Councillor Kieran Thorpe 
 

“This autumn sees the end of nearly fifteen years of partnership between this 
council and Mears. 

At the point this partnership reached a decade, it was described by the then 
leader of this council as a significant achievement.  

Page 4



 

Does the leader of the Council agree with me that real issue of significance is an 
abysmal decade and a half of decaying housing services from a provider that has 
failed to provide, and a Council that has utterly failed to manage the outsourcing 
of one of our most crucial services?” 

7. Question to the Leader from Councillor Lucy Musk 
 

“From October 1st 2022 after a lot of delays and little communication the High 
Fat, Salt and Sugar (HFSS) legislation finally comes into force for England.  

Whilst the government has been slow to liaise with retailers on space and a 
goods that will be restricted, does this council have a robust plan in place for the 
enforcement of HFSS Legislation including any additional costs that the council 
may incur?” 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

Part I 
Item No:  
For Decision 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 14 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 
Recommendation from Cabinet on 9 August 2022:- 
 
28.1. DISREGARD OF WAR PENSIONS POLICY (FORWARD PLAN 

REFERENCE FP1132)  

Report of the Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) on the 
disregard of the War Pensions Policy. 

 
(1) The Decision Taken 

RESOLVED: 
(unanimous) 

 The Council’s disregard of war pensions procedure when calculating 
housing benefit and council tax support was agreed by Cabinet and 
recommended to Full Council. 

 
(2) Reasons for the Decision 

The purpose of the report was to document existing working practices 
to ensure that members of the armed forces who have been disabled 
during service or the widows, widowers or surviving civil partners of 
those who died in the service of their country should not be penalised 
by having their pensions or payments made in relation to their service, 
taken into account in the calculation of their housing benefit or council 
tax support entitlement. 

The Council disregards in full war widows and war disablement 
pensions when calculating entitlement to housing benefit. 

The Council Tax Support Scheme replaced council tax benefits from 
April 2013 and the Council’s scheme for working age recipients and 
pensioners allows for the full disregard of war widow and war 
disablement pensions. 

The cost of these disregards was minimal due to the fact the council 
receives 75% subsidy towards these costs, with a cost of less than 
£2,500 last year.  

An equalities impact assessment had been undertaken, no negative 
impacts had been identified but potentially positive impacts have been 
identified as set out the equalities implications. 

 

The reports of the Cabinet meeting can be viewed in full here: 
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=1438&Ver=4   

Page 7

Agenda Item 8a

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=1438&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	8a Disregard of War Pensions Policy

